
North County Joint Union School District 

Regular Board Meeting 
Board Room 

Thursday, August 18, 2022 
Open Session 

6:00 PM 

UTrustees 
Reneé Faught 

Cindy King 
Frank O’Connell 

Ted Zanella 
Norma Nichols 

UAdministration 
Jennifer Bernosky  

Superintendent/Principal 
Gabriella Armenta 

Director of Student Services, Curriculum & Instruction 
Kristi Vieyra 

Director of Special Education / Administrative District Psychologist 





Regular Board Meeting: August 18, 2022 

“Every Spring Grove Student will receive an engaging, enriching, and rigorous educational experience using state and standards-based curriculum 

and consistent measures of growth and support to ensure student success.” 

NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
500 Spring Grove Rd. 
Hollister, CA  95023 

Board of Trustees 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Thursday, August 18, 2022 
 Open Session - 6:00PM 

 
Speaking at board meetings: The public is encouraged to speak to the Board on issues of concern whether or not the issue(s) are on the agenda. To 
address the Board, please complete a speaker card and give it to the Administrative Assistant sitting next to the Superintendent. (Speaker cards are 
available on the entrance table.) If you want to speak to the Board on a subject listed on the agenda, you will be called to the podium at the time your 
item of interest is being considered by the Board. If the item is not on the agenda, you will be called to the podium during Public Comments (Item B). 
Public comments are limited to 3 minutes per person per topic, unless otherwise noted. 

Electronic devices: Please turn the sound off all cell phones, pagers, PDAs, and other electronic devices, to avoid disrupting these proceedings. 

 AGENDA ITEM GOAL PAGE 

A. CALL TO ORDER 6:00 PM (BOARD ROOM) 

1) Pledge of Allegiance 
2) Approval of Agenda 
3) Recognition of Visitors 

  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Public Comment cards must be completed prior to the start of the meeting of the Board. Speakers will be 
addressed in the order in which cards are received. In accordance with Board Policy 9323, procedures for 
the public to address the Board concerning any item on the agenda or to address the board during public 

comment shall be as follows: 

• Three (3) minutes may be allotted to each speaker with a maximum of 15 minutes per item. 

• No boisterous conduct shall be permitted at any Board of Trustee meeting 

• Personnel matters and pending litigation may not be discussed during public comments   
C. REPORTS AND INFORMATION 

1) Fiscal Services Report – Sheila Maes, Manager, Fiscal Services 
2) Complaint Summary relating to the William’s Settlement during the period April 1, 2022 – 

June 30, 2022. – Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
3) Director’s Report – Gabriella Armenta, Director of Student Services, Curriculum, and 

Instruction 
a) Summer School 

4) Operations - Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent / Principal 
a) Child Nutrition 
b) Transportation 
c) Buildings/Facilities 

5) Principal’s Report – Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
a) Back to School 
b) Professional Development 

6) Board Member Report 
7) Area Trustee Report, Jennifer Bernosky – Superintendent/Principal 
8) Superintendent’s Report – Jennifer Bernosky – Superintendent/Principal 

a) Enrollment 
b) CDPH Update 
c) Aeries 

 
5 
1-5 
 
1-2 
 
 
4-5 
 
 
 
1-5 
 
 
3 
3 
1-5 

 
1-2 
3-5 

 
6-10 

 
 

11-20 
 
 
 

21 
 
 

22 
23 

24-28 

D. CONSENT ITEMS *These items are considered routine and may be enacted by the board in one motion. There is 
no discussion on these items prior to the motion unless a specific item is removed from the consent list. 
1) Approve Meeting Minutes, as presented (Regular Board Meeting – June 23, 2022, Special 

Meeting August 9, 2022) 
2) Approve District Warrant List: July 1, 2022 – July 31, 2023 
3) Approve Personnel Exhibit, as presented. 
4) Ratify District Contracts for the 2022/2023 School Year, as presented. 
5) Approve the Investment of Funds Report for the Quarter Ending June 30, 2022 

 

 
 

29-58 



Regular Board Meeting: August 18, 2022 

“Every Spring Grove Student will receive an engaging, enriching, and rigorous educational experience using state and standards-based curriculum 

and consistent measures of growth and support to ensure student success.” 

E. DISCUSSION / ACTION 

1. Adopt the North County Joint Union School District 2022/2023 Organizational Chart, 
as presented. 

2. Approve Certification of Certificated Evaluators for the 2022/2023 School Year, as 
presented. 

3. Approve District Negotiators for the 20222023 School Year, as presented  

 
3 
 

3 
 

3,5 

 
60-61 

 
62 

 
63 

F. TRUSTEE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS   

G. NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Thursday, September 15, 2022   
H. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 

Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes with a maximum of 15 minutes per item.   
I. CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION 

The Board of Trustees will meet in closed session to consider and/or discuss the following, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.5 

1. Existing/Anticipated Litigation/Significant Exposure to Litigation pursuant to 
Government Code 54956.9. 

2. Public Employee Employment, Appointment, Performance Evaluation pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957 and 54957.1.   

J. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AND REPORT ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION   
K. ADJOURNMENT   

In compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5 all documents related to this meeting are available for public viewing at North County Joint Union 
School District, 500 Spring Grove Road, Hollister, California or at www.ncjusd.org.  

*Individuals who require disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, to participate in the Board meeting 
should contact the Superintendent in writing in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting 

will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board meeting. 



  

REPORTS 

AND 

INFORMATION 



 
NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  

Fiscal Services 
BOARD REPORT 

 
 
  

DATE:  August 18,  2022 
 
REPORT BY: Sheila Maes, Manager, Fiscal Services 
 
TOPIC: Fiscal Services Update 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: None - Informational 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
A regular report from the Manager, Fiscal Services provides information and background for the Board of Trustees related to 
the District budget. 
BUDGET:   NCJUSD Fund 01 activity to date: revenues as of 7-29-2022 $38,775; expenses: $228,553.  Attached is the 
year-to-date expenditures within Fund 01.  Expenditures do include the July End of Month payroll.   During this snapshot of 
the District’s budget the expenditures typically outpace the revenues to date.   As the Governor promised with the 
enactment of the 2022-23 State Budget, the District anticipates new funding  in the current fiscal year 2022-23  $448,512 for 
the Arts, Music and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant (one-time)-Resource 6762, $480,084 as an increase to 
the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program(ongoing) $480,084 and $731,938 for the Learning Recovery Emergency 
Block Grant-Resource 7435. The Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant (one time) is not discretionary and will need to 
be spent on specified purposes. The block grant may be used for learning recovery initiatives through the 2027-2028 school 
year. The dollar amounts are based on School Services estimate as of 8-2-2022.   These new resources will be added 
during First Interim.  
 
CONCLUSION: This report provides an opportunity for the Manager, Fiscal Services to share current information. 
 

1 1



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGET REPORT

Monthly Expenditures 
Jul-22

SCHOOL YEAR
8%

Function Adopted Budget Expenses % of Budget
22-23 7/29/2022 spent

1000 LCFF Local Control Funding Formula 4,125,917               3,918                      0%
1000 LCAP Local Control Accountability Plan 574,715                  67,326                    12%
2700 School Administration 732,026                  27,292                    4%
3600 Transportation 240,351                  844                         0%
4100 Music Program 10,050                    -                          0%
4200 After School Sports 38,276                    -                          0%
7100 Board/Superintendent 354,189                  36,815                    10%
7200 District Administration 33,250                    854                         3%
7300 Fiscal Services 270,724                  32,473                    12%
7400 Human Resources 14,200                    3,783                      27%
8200 Operations 448,295                  18,171                    4%

Resource

1100 State Lottery-Unrestricted 268,650                  22,833                    8%
1400 Education Protection Account 141,400                  -                          0%
2600 Expanded Learning Opp Program -                          -                          0%
3010 Title I 55,578                    -                          0%

3060/3061 Migrant Education -                          45                           0%
3212 CRRSA -Esser II (9-30-23) 158,027                  -                          0%
3213 ARP-Esser III (9-30-24) 239,861                  -                          0%
4035 Title II - Teacher Quality 11,037                    -                          0%
4127 Ttile IV Student Support and Academic Enrichment 10,000                    -                          0%
6266 Educator Effectiveness 27,500                    -                          0%
6300 Lottery - Prop 20 Instructional Materials 49,147                    2,701                      5%

3310/6500 Special Education 1,263,507               1,401                      0%
7426 Expanded Learning Loss- Paraprofessionals 33,128                    -                          0%
8150 Maintenance 181,994                  10,097                    6%
9012 Use of Facility 3,000                      -                          0%
9013 Science Camp 21,644                    -                          0%
9014 Jr. Kinder 54,913                    -                          0%
9017 Student Recognition 3,000                      -                          0%

Total  9,364,379              228,553                 2%

C:\Users\smaes@ad.sbcoe.org\Documents\22-23\Board Reports\JULY EXPENSES Page 1
2 2



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 

 
  

DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
 
TOPIC: Uniform Complaint Summary 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: None - Informational 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Pursuant to Education Code 35186, and in accordance with the Williams Uniform 
Complaint Process and Procedures, every school district is required to summarize data on the nature and resolution of all 
complaints on a quarterly basis each year and submit this information to the Governing board of their school district and 
the County Superintendent of Schools. The summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly 
scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school district. The report shall include the number of complaints by 
general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints. The complainants and written responses 
shall be available as public records. 
 

CONCLUSION: There have been no complaints for the period April 1, 2022 – June 30, 2022. 

3 3



Quarterly District Report: Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP)
Properly submitting this form to SBCOE serves as your district’s Williams UCP Quarterly Complaint 
Report per Education Code § 35186(d). All fields are required.

SUBMITTER INFORMATION

Name Job Title Phone Number
Person submitting form Include area code

E-mail Address

DISTRICT INFORMATION

School District Year Covered by This Report Quarter Covered by This Report

COMPLAINTS
Sufficiency of Textbooks

Total Number of Textbook Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Textbook Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Textbook Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

Emergency School Facilities Issues

Total Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

Vacancy or Misassignment of Teachers

Total Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

Page 1 of 24 4



RESOLUTION OF COMPLAINTS
Briefly summarize the nature of complaints and how they were resolved.

Enter “N/A” if no complaints were received. If you need more space, enter “sent by e-mail” and send your summary 

to Sandra Silva with your report.

REPORT INCLUDES ALL COMPLAINTS FOR THIS QUARTER
The number of UCP complaints (textbooks, facilities, and teachers categories) filed for the quarter being reported MUST 
be entered in this report. Please check the box below confirming this:

Includes All UCP Complaints
All UCP complaints for the indicated quarter are being reported—from my district office and all school sites in my district.

By submitting this form, you certify that the information is complete and accurate, and that you have verified the accuracy 
of the report information by contacting each school in your district. The report includes ALL UCP complaints in the above 
categories received at school sites in the district, plus the district office.

RETURN INSTRUCTIONS
After completing the form in its entirety, save the file and e-mail it to Sandra Silva at the San Benito County Office of 
Education (SBCOE): ssilva@sbcoe.org.

Page 2 of 25 5



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 

  
DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Gabriella Armenta, Director of Student Services, Curriculum, and Instruction 
 
TOPIC: Director’s Report 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: None - Informational 
 
 
SUMMER SCHOOL UPDATE:  
Our Spring Grove summer school programs, General Education and Migrant, provided a focused academic 
environment with social emotional learning programs, small group reading interventions, and field trips. 
 
Our general education program serviced students 3.5 hours a day for 16 days.  Our Migrant program serviced 
students 4 hours a day for 20 days.  Our teachers planned for targeted instruction in Reading and Mathematics.   
 
Our teachers were provided with plenty of data to form small groups of students immediately and send specific 
students for extra intervention with Ms. Garcia, our summer school intervention teacher.  Our Migrant 
students were given pre and post assessments, daily time with social-emotional learning with Ms. Colby, and 
music with Mrs. Horne. 
 
Summer school attendance was strong in both programs: 
 
Attendance Gen Ed # of Students 
Kinder – First 86% 14 
Second – Third 91% 20 
Fourth –  Fifth 89% 12 
Sixth – Seventh 80% 12 
Total Average = 87% 58 
 
Attendance Migrant # of Students 
Preschool 94% 2 
Kinder – Second 84% 17 
Third – Fifth 92% 12 
Sixth – Seventh  82% 11 
Total Average = 88% 42 
 
Instead of STEAM Fair Fridays, our Migrant students attended three field trips to the Children’s Discovery 
Museum of San Jose, The Tech Interactive in San Jose, and The Hartnell College Planetarium in Salinas. We 
also had four students attend a weeklong camp at Walden West.  Our Migrant students were also serviced 
with vision screening and two students received a voucher to order new glasses.   
 
The academic data attached are pre and post assessments for our Migrant summer school program.  There was 
growth in reading, writing, math, and SEL (social-emotional learning). 
 

6 6



CONCLUSION: Our summer school program was well attended, provided academic support, targeted 
instruction, small group opportunities, social-emotional learning, and music.  We ended our summer school 
with a terrific Reader’s Theater performance.  Students had an opportunity to read from a script and laugh with 
their peers.  It was a great experience and event!

7 7



M
igrant Sum

m
er School K

inder-Second G
rade Pre/Post 2022

W
riting A

ssessm
ent

Pre Score
Post Score

R
eading 

A
ssessm

ent
Pre Score

Post Score
M

ath A
ssessm

ent
Pre Score

Post Score
K1

I can w
rite a sentence

2/4
4/4

C
V

C
 W

ords
10/12

11/12
M

ake 10 Level 1
6/11

11/11
2

I can w
rite a sentence

1/4
A

bsent
C

V
C

 W
ords

5/12
A

bsent
M

ake 10 Level 1
11/11

A
bsent

3
I can w

rite a sentence
A

bsent
1/4

Letter N
am

es
0/26

14/26
M

ake 10 Level 1
A

bsent
7/11

4
I can w

rite a sentence
1/4

A
bsent

Letter N
am

es
9/26

A
bsent

M
ake 10 Level 1

0/11
A

bsent
5

I can w
rite a sentence

1/4
1/4

Letter N
am

es
10/26

11/26
M

ake 10 Level 1
0/11

9/11

1st
1

I can w
rite 3 sentences

3/4
4/4

C
V

C
 W

ords
7/12

12/12
M

ake 10 Level 2
11/11

11/11
M

agic E
 P

assage
4/4

2
I can w

rite 3 sentences
1/4

1/4
C

V
C

 W
ords

0/12
4/12

M
ake 10 Level 2

4/11
6/11

3
I can w

rite 3 sentences
1/4

2/4
C

V
C

 W
ords

10/12
11/12

M
ake 10 Level 2

9/11
10/11

4
I can w

rite 3 sentences
4/4

4/4
M

agic E
 P

assage
3/4

4/4
M

ake 10 Level 2
10/11

A
bsent

5
I can w

rite 3 sentences
4/4

3/4
M

agic E
 P

assage
4/4

4/4
M

ake 10 Level 2
10/11

11/11
6

I can w
rite 3 sentences

2/4
3/4

C
V

C
 W

ords
6/12

9/12
M

ake 10 Level 2
5/11

11/11

2nd
1

I can w
rite 5 sentences

A
bsent

3/4
C

V
C

 W
ords

11/12
12/12

M
ake 10 Level 3

A
bsent

12/12
M

agic E
 P

assage
2/4

2
I can w

rite 5 sentences
2/4

A
bsent

M
agic E

 P
assage

1/4
1/4

M
ake 10 Level 3

10/12
10/12

3
I can w

rite 5 sentences
A

bsent
2/4

M
agic E

 P
assage

4/4
A

bsent
M

ake 10 Level 3
A

bsent
A

bsent
4

I can w
rite 5 sentences

3/4
3/4

M
agic E

 P
assage

4/4
4/4

M
ake 10 Level 3

7/12
A

bsent
5

I can w
rite 5 sentences

1/4
1/4

C
V

C
 W

ords
5/12

8/12
M

ake 10 Level 3
3/12

12/12
O

ne 2nd grader m
oved to 3rd grade lessons w

/M
rs. B

rantom
e

8 8



M
igrant Sum

m
er School 3rd-5th G

rade Pre/Post 2022

Sight W
ords 

Pre-Test 
6/7/22

Sight W
ords 

Post-Test 
6/30/22

R
A

C
E 

Statem
ent 

Pre-Test 
6/20/22

R
A

C
E 

Statem
ent 

Post-Test 
6/30/22

M
ath Pre-

test 6/7/22

M
ath Post-
Test 

6/30/22
SEL Pre-

Test
SEL 

Post-Test
2nd
1

100/100
100/100

absent
2

4/6
5/6

absent
20/20

3rd
1

94/100
99/100

3
3

5/6
6/6

14/20
19/20

2
92/100

95/100
2

2
4/6

5/6
9/20

17/20
3

58/100
68/100

2
1

0/6
4/6

9/20
9/20

4th
1

76/100
91/100

1
2

4/6
5/6

13/20
20/20

2
87/100

94/100
2

2
6/6

N
/A

11/20
13/20

3
94/100

99/100
3

2
6/6

N
/A

12/20
16/20

4
87/100

absent
-

4/6
absent

14/20
16/20

5th
1

99/100
100/100

3
3

6/6
N
/A

17/20
18/20

2
82/100

93/100
2

2
0/6

3/6
13/20

15/20
3

85/100
93/100

2
2

1/6
4/6

16/20
19/20

4
99/100

100/100
3

3
5/6

6/6
13/20

17/20

9 9



M
igrant Sum

m
er School 6th-7th G

rade Pre/Post 2022
Sight W

ord 
Pre Test

Sight W
ord 

Post Test
E

L
A

 Pre 
Test @

 840L
E

L
A

 Post 
Test

M
ath Pre 

Test
M

ath Post 
Test

6th
1

96/100 9th
N

/A - A
bsent

4/4 = 100%
N

/A - A
bsent

4/10 = 40%
N

/A - A
bsent

2
P

assed 10th
N

/A
4/4 = 100%

4/4 = 100%
4.5/10 = 45%

8.5/10 = 85%

3
P

assed 10th
N

/A
4/4 = 100%

N
/A - A

bsent
4.5/10 = 45%

N
/A - A

bsent

4
56/100 3rd

A
bsent

A
bsent

A
bsent

A
bsent

A
bsent

7th
1

P
assed 10th

N
/A

4/4 = 100%
4/4 = 100%

9.5/10 = 95%
8.5/10 = 85%

2
P

assed 10th
N

/A
4/4 = 100%

4/4 = 100%
9.5/10 = 95%

10/10 = 100%

5
P

assed 10th
N

/A
4/4 = 100%

4/4 = 100%
7/10 = 70%

10/10 = 100%

6
95/100 10th

98/100
2/4 = 50%

4/4 = 100%
7/10 = 70%

10/10 = 100%

7
P

assed 10th
N

/A
3/4 = 75%

4/4 = 100%
8/10 = 80%

9.5/10 = 95%

9
P

assed 10th
N

/A
3/4 = 75%

N
/A - A

bsent
4.5/10 = 45%

A
bsent

10
P

assed 10th
N

/A
3/4 = 75%

3/4 = 75%
4/10 = 40%

10/10 = 100%

10 10



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 
 
DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
 
TOPIC: Operations Report 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: None - Informational 
 
 
CHILD NUTRITION: This year all students are entitled to a free breakfast and a free lunch daily.  Breakfast is 
served between 7:50-8:05.  Second chance breakfast is served during the morning recess.   
 
TRANSPORTATION:  The San Benito High School District will transport Spring Grove students to and from 
school each day.  The morning route runs 2 buses.  The 2:15 p.m. route runs 3 buses and the 3:00 p.m. route runs 
2 buses.  On Thursdays, 4 buses transport students to their bus stops. 
 
FACILITIES: During the summer months, the custodial team deep cleaned the entire school campus.  Projects 
that were completed included the following: 
Concrete outside Rooms 1-2 (3 round tables/umbrellas to be installed) 
Concrete next to school office (3 round tables/umbrella installed) 
Outside painting- Rooms 25-36 and back of school gym 
 
Furniture plans:   
New TK tables and chairs have been ordered. 
Replace teacher desks that are older than 2008. 
Begin to explore student desk/chair options for 3rd grade (currently using furniture from before 2008) 
 
Facility needs: 
The District is at maximum capacity in terms of classrooms for students and staff.  Room 10 houses the ELD 
class and 4 cubicles for PE teachers, School Resource Officer, and the Bilingual Intervention Support Specials. 
Meeting space is limited to the District Office and the Ausaymas Room. 
 
Upcoming needs beginning in the 2023-2024 school year will include: 
1 additional TK classroom 
1 additional classroom for PE (Rainy or hot days) 
Middle School bathrooms near the blacktop 
 
There is a grant process available for TK modular buildings which is due in April.  Superintendent Bernosky 
will apply for the grant.   
Cost proposals for 4 classrooms with bathrooms has also been provided so that the Board of Trustees can get 
an idea of costs. 
 
It is important that the Board of Trustees start the discussion now on what to plan for in the 2023-2024 school 
year. 
 
 

11 11



Beautification project: 
The proposal for the beautification project in the center of Rooms 26-36 has also been provided.  This includes 
the area completely covered with artificial turf   
Other options include:  cement instead of turf with areas for trees (shade) with round tables and umbrellas.  
The cost per square foot of cement was $20.00 for the project completed in July 2022. The approximate cost 
proposed for artificial turf is $75.00 per square foot not including soft costs. 
 
Well project: The engineering firm will be out in August to begin the next step in preparation to go out to bid 
for the well. 
 
 
CONCLUSION:  This report is for information and discussion. 

12 12



13 13



14 14



15 15



16 16



Spring Grove ShoolSpring Grove ShoolSpring Grove ShoolSpring Grove Shool ISA # 2167ISA # 2167ISA # 2167ISA # 2167

NCJUSDNCJUSDNCJUSDNCJUSD Rev: 07/05/2022

500 Spring Grove Rd, Hollister, CA500 Spring Grove Rd, Hollister, CA500 Spring Grove Rd, Hollister, CA500 Spring Grove Rd, Hollister, CA

Probable Construction Cost - Modular BuildingsProbable Construction Cost - Modular BuildingsProbable Construction Cost - Modular BuildingsProbable Construction Cost - Modular Buildings

Item Qty Unit Cost

A. New Modular Classroom Building
Typical Relocatable Building (24x40) 4 EA x $200,000 = $800,000
Modular Toilet (12x40) 1 EA x $115,000 = $115,000
Modular Classroom 4320 SF x $250 = $1,080,000

B. Site Improvements & Utilities
1 Site Clearing/Demo 10600 SF x $15 = $159,000 $159,000

2 Building Pad, Sitework in area of CR 10600 SF x $30 = $318,000 $318,000

C. Combined Subtotal $1,392,000 $1,557,000

D. Contingency @ 15% $208,800 $233,550

E. Total Probable Construction Cost $1,600,800 $1,790,550

F. Soft Cost Estimate $400,200 $447,638
Includes:

1 A&E Fees

3 Survey, Geotech, Geohazard, Hazmat

4 Permits & fees

5 Escalation Costs

6 Test & inspections

7 SWPP design & inspections

TOTAL  PROBABLE  PROJECT  COST = TOTAL  PROBABLE  PROJECT  COST = TOTAL  PROBABLE  PROJECT  COST = TOTAL  PROBABLE  PROJECT  COST = $2,001,000$2,001,000$2,001,000$2,001,000 $2,238,188$2,238,188$2,238,188$2,238,188

Exclusions:

1 Utility upgrades

2 Contaminated Soil Removal

3 Haz Mat removal

4 Parking Shade Structure (future solar project)

5 Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment

6 Any item not listed above

New Relocatables,                      
& Sitework

New         
Modulars,              
& Sitework

17 17



Spring Grove ShoolSpring Grove ShoolSpring Grove ShoolSpring Grove Shool ISA # 2167ISA # 2167ISA # 2167ISA # 2167

NCJUSDNCJUSDNCJUSDNCJUSD Rev: 07/05/2022

500 Spring Grove Rd, Hollister, CA500 Spring Grove Rd, Hollister, CA500 Spring Grove Rd, Hollister, CA500 Spring Grove Rd, Hollister, CA

Probable Construction Cost - Shade Structure + Turf AreaProbable Construction Cost - Shade Structure + Turf AreaProbable Construction Cost - Shade Structure + Turf AreaProbable Construction Cost - Shade Structure + Turf Area

Item Qty Unit Cost

A. New Shade Structure
Fabric Shade Structure (20x40) 1 EA x $105,000 = $105,000

B. Site Improvements & Utilities
1 Site Clearing/Demo 6000 SF x $15 = $90,000

2 Building Pad, Sitework in area of CR 6000 SF x $60 = $360,000

C. Combined Subtotal $555,000

D. Contingency @ 15% $83,250

E. Total Probable Construction Cost $638,250

F. Soft Cost Estimate $127,650
Includes:

1 A&E Fees

3 Survey, Geotech, Geohazard, Hazmat

4 Permits & fees

5 Escalation Costs

6 Test & inspections

7 SWPP design & inspections

TOTAL  PROBABLE  PROJECT  COST = TOTAL  PROBABLE  PROJECT  COST = TOTAL  PROBABLE  PROJECT  COST = TOTAL  PROBABLE  PROJECT  COST = $765,900$765,900$765,900$765,900

Exclusions:

1 Utility upgrades

2 Contaminated Soil Removal

3 Haz Mat removal

4 Parking Shade Structure (future solar project)

5 Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment

6 Any item not listed above

New 
Relocatables,                      

& Sitework

18 18



19 19



20 20



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 
 
DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
 
TOPIC: Principal’s Report 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: None - Informational 
 
 
BACK TO SCHOOL: With the opening of the 2022-2023 school year, the following events took place: 

• 6th grade parent/student orientation on Monday, August 8th from 5:00-7:00.  65 students and their 
parents attended.  They attended four sessions:  science camp with Mrs. Scimeca, social media 
education with Mrs. Guardino, team building with Ms. Asplund and Mrs. Salas, and 
chromebook/textbook check out with Mrs. Firstbrook, Mrs. Maes, and Ms. Armenta.  They ended the 
event by picking up their class schedules and eating pizza.   

• 7th/8th grade chromebook checkout:  Tuesday, August 9th and Wednesday, August 10th students in 7th 
and 8th grade came to check out their chromebooks and textbooks with Mrs. Firstbrook. 

• PTO New Tiger Social:  This event took place on Wednesday, August 10th from 2-4 p.m.  Our PTO 
parents and ASB officers did a great job.  Activities were planned for all, and it was well attended. 

• TK/K Meet and Greet:   This event also took place on Wednesday, August 11th from 3:00-4:00 p.m.  
Students and their parents were able to visit the classroom and meet their teachers before the first day 
of school. 

 
The first day of school went well. Staff were ready to greet our students and welcome them to the new school 
year.  Superintendent/Principal Bernosky and SRO Deputy Jeremy Cedeno walked through classes together to 
greet the students.  The Welcome Back to School Assemblies took place on Friday, August 12th.   
 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT:  
AVID training:  14 staff members attended the AVID trainings in July and created the site goals for the year.  
The goals have been shared with all certificated staff members and will be incorporated into the District Goals 
to be shared in September. 
Back to School All Staff PD was held for all 73 staff members.  The morning included: AVID engagement 
strategies, nuts and bolts, plans for the year, along with a luncheon hosted by the Spring Grove PTO. 
Whole Brain Teaching Training:  Mrs. Julie Neff provided a 2-hour training to interested staff on Wednesday, 
August 10th.  7 staff members attended. 
New Employee Orientation:  The District has hired 10 new staff members this year.  They attended a 2-hour 
nuts and bolts training with Superintendent/Principal Bernosky on Wednesday, August 10, 2022. 
 

21 21



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 

 
DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
 
TOPIC: Board Member Report 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: None - Informational 
 
 

  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: This regular agenda item provides an opportunity for individual Trustees 
to make requests for information and/or suggest future Board agenda items supported by the Board and  
provide direction to staff based on Board agreement. In addition, it provides an opportunity for Trustees to 
make brief reports to the Board.  

 
CONCLUSION: This report provides an opportunity for Board input.  
 
 

22 22



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD REPORT 

DATE: August 18, 2022

REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 

TOPIC: Area Trustee Report 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: None - Informational 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The California Voting Rights Act (CVRA) was enacted in 2002.  Districts 
who elect board members by “trustee areas” are immune to the CVRA.  The NCJUSD currently elects its board 
member at large.  For a District to move towards “trustee area” elections, a District would work with a law firm 
who has experience in the process.   This regular agenda item provides an opportunity for the Superintendent to 
keep the Board of Trustees updated on the District’s status as it pertains to this issue.  

CONCLUSION: The Superintendent will provide up to date information available at the time of the meeting. 

23 23



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 
DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky – Superintendent/Principal 
 
TOPIC: Superintendent’s Report 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: None - Informational 
 
 
STUDENT ENROLLMENT: Enrollment on the first day of school, August 11, 2022, was 732 students.  The 
class sizes have been attached for Board Member review. 
 
CDPH UPDATE: The CDPH updated the COVID-19 guidelines as of June 30, 2022.  The guidelines were 
reviewed with staff at the back-to-school professional development day.  The attached isolation flyer will also 
be sent home to families.   
 
AERIES:  The new student information system is up and running and has replaced Powerschool.  Our school 
office and administration are in the process of learning all the functions and reports and will continue to 
receive training.  All certificated staff had a half day training on August 9th.  Parent Square which is a part of 
Aeries will be our email, text, phone call communication to parents.  This is a key piece to our communication 
which is so important and should be up and running soon.  The next piece will be to get parents and students 
their own log in so that they can monitor their students’ progress.   
 
CONCLUSION: This report provides the Superintendent an opportunity to share current information. 

24 24



Current COVID-19 Guidelines
From CDPH as of June 30, 2022

Face masks Face masks will be available for students and staff.
Face masks may be worn but are not required.

Antigen tests The school office has a supply of tests available for parents to
pick up to test their student when they have symptoms.

Handwashing Classrooms and bathrooms are equipped with soap for
handwashing.  Hand sanitizer is available in all classrooms.

Individuals with
symptoms

Students with new, unexplained symptoms should stay home until
it is clear that symptoms are mild and improving or are due to a
non-infectious cause (eg. allergies). This includes waiting 24
hours after a fever has passed without the use of fever-reducing
medication.
If symptoms are concerning for COVID-19,  it is recommended
that the student wear a mask and get tested.

Individuals who
test positive for
COVID-19

Stay home for 5 days.  May return after 5 days if symptoms have
improved and with a negative test.( see flyer) Negative test not
required after 10 days.

Student exposure
to COVID-19

Grade level (4th-8th) or class (TK-3rd) will be notified via email of
a close contact. This will be a general notification.

Staff exposure to
COVID-19

Notification via email of potential exposure.  Information is
confidential and will not be shared openly.

Staff Sick Leave COVID-19 supplemental paid sick leave is available through
September 30, 2022. ( You must notify Jenny upon testing positive
for COVID-19 or carrying for a family member with COVID-19.)

Staff Testing Staff members who are unvaccinated (2 vaccines) will test each
Thursday at a regularly scheduled time.

Optimizing Indoor
Air Quality

New air filtration system installed. Air filters are replaced in Fall
and Spring.

Questions- See Jenny

25 25



26 26



Current Enrollment 2022-2023 

As of August 15, 2022 

TK   5th  
Painter 22  Brantome 26 

Total TK 22  Hain 28 
   Johnson 27 

Kindergarten   Total 5th 81 
Bloom 18    
Canez 19  6th  

Lowther 18  Asplund 27 
Nehme 20  Chamblin 1 
Total K 75  Salas 27 

   Scimeca 28 
1st grade   Total 6th 83 
Belscher 21    
Garman 22  7th  
Shugars 22  Chamblin 2 
Total 1st 65  Gastello 29 

   Lalande 27 
2nd grade   Pacheco 28 

Garcia 20  Total 7th 86 
Gonzales 20    

Neff 21  8th  
Oldakowski 21  Balbas 27 
Total 2nd 82  Chamblin 5 

   Griffin 27 
3rd grade   Guardino 27 

Horne 21  Total 8th 86 
Martinez 22    

Raine 22    
Zanger 22  Total Enrollment 735 

Total 3rd 87    
     

4th grade     
Berlanga 22    

Betancourt 23    
Kakebeen 23    
Total 4th 68    

Kaplansky/Nelson - PE 

Hawkins  (TK-4th)    Anderson- school psychologist 

Picha ELD (4th-8th)        Shores - Speech  .8 

Total FTE  37.8 
 

27 27



28 28



  

CONSENT 

ITEMS 

29 29



  

NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MEETING MINUTES 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

June 23, 2022 

 

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 6:00PM by Board President, Ted Zanella. 

 Members Present: Renee Faught, Trustee, Norma Nichols, Trustee, Frank O’Connell, Trustee, 
Cindy King, Board Clerk. Ted Zanella, Board President 
Absent: NONE 

1. Pledge of Allegiance The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Board President, Ted Zanella. 

2. Approval of Agenda Motion to approve by Cindy King, 2nd  by Renee Faught 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Frank O’Connell, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted 
Zanella, Aye 
Absent: NONE 

3. Recognition of Visitors NONE 

SPECIAL RECOGNITION Mrs. Bernosky (Superintendent/Principal) recognized Mrs. Robin Horne for her hard work and 
dedication with the Spring Grove music and choir programs. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS NONE 

2021/2022 DISCIPLINE REPORT Mrs. Bernosky (Superintendent/Principal) presented the provided report and mentioned that 
the discipline report includes all referrals and suspensions.  

FISCAL SERVICES REPORT Sheila Maes (Manager, Fiscal Services) reviewed the provided report and added that, to date, 
revenue has been $8.2 million, and expenses have been $7.5 million. 

DSSCI REPORT Gabriella Armenta (Director of Student Services, Curriculum, and Instruction) reviewed the 
provided report and presented data from the District Writing Samples. Ms. Armenta mentioned 
that this data shows the need to emphasize evidence and elaboration. Summer School is going 
well. There are approximately 35-42 Migrant students and 60 general ed students attending. 
Ms. Anderson (School Psychologist INTERN) is presenting valuable social emotional lessons to 
summer school students. 

2021/2022 i-READY REPORT Mrs. Bernosky (Superintendent/Principal) presented the provided report and added that this 
data will serve as a baseline now that students are back to completing most i-Ready lessons in 
the classroom. 

LCAP LOCAL INDICATORS REPORT Mrs. Bernosky (Superintendent/Principal) presented the provided report and mentioned that 
this report will go with the completed LCAP which will be uploaded in October. 

BOARD MEMBER REPORT NONE 

AREA TRUSTEE REPORT Trustee Faught reported that she will be attending an upcoming District Organization Meeting 
for San Benito County and invited any other Board Members who would like to attend. 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT Mrs. Bernosky (Superintendent/Principal) reviewed the provided report and added that the 8th 
grade Graduation ceremony went well. The District’s projected TK enrollment for the upcoming 
school year is 24 students. 15 teachers will be attending the AVID trainings over the summer. 
Spring Grove School is making the change from PowerSchool to Aeries as the Student 
Information System. 

CONSENT Motion to approve by Renee Faught, 2nd  by Norma Nichols 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Frank O’Connell, Aye,  Cindy King, Aye, Ted 
Zanella, Aye 
Absent: NONE 

DISCUSSION / ACTION 1) Approve School Resource Officer Position, as presented 
Motion to approve by Norma Nichols, 2nd  by Renee Faught 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Frank O’Connell, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted 
Zanella, Aye 
Absent: NONE 
2) Adopt the 2022/2023 North County Joint Union School District Budget, as presented. 
Motion to approve by Norma Nichols, 2nd  by Frank O’Connell 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Frank O’Connell, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted 
Zanella, Aye 
Absent: NONE 
3) Approve the 2022/2023 Local Control Accountability Plan including the 2022/2023 
Budget Overview for Parents and 2021/2022 Supplemental Template, as presented. 
Motion to approve by Cindy King, 2nd by Norma Nichols 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Frank O’Connell, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted 
Zanella, Aye 
Absent: NONE 

30 30



Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Jenny Bernosky, Secretary  

North County Joint Union School District  

Board of Trustees  

4) Approve MOU Between Santa Clara County Office of Education and NCJUSD Regarding 
Participation in the Migrant Education Program, as presented 
Motion to approve by Cindy King, 2nd by Norma Nichols 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Frank O’Connell, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted 
Zanella, Aye 
Absent: NONE 

TRUSTEE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS Superintendent Bernosky will provide a Transportation Budget Review at a future meeting. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON CLOSED SESSION NONE 

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING August 18, 2022 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION At 7:41 PM Motion to Adjourn to Closed Session by Renee Faught, 2nd by Norma Nichols 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Frank O’Connell, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted 
Zanella, Aye 
Absent: NONE 

CLOSED SESSION/ADJOURNMENT The Board of Trustees met in closed session to consider and/or discuss the following, pursuant 
to Government Code Section 54954.5. 
1. Existing/Anticipated Litigation/Significant Exposure to Litigation pursuant to 
Government Code 54956.9. 
2. Public Employee Employment, Appointment, Performance Evaluation pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957 and 54947.1 
At 8:00 pm motion to reconvene to open session by Frank O’Connell, 2nd by Norma Nichols. 
No action was taken. 
At 8:01 pm motion to adjourn by Ted Zanella, 2nd by Cindy King 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Frank O’Connell, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted 
Zanella, Aye 
Absent: NONE 

31 31



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MEETING MINUTES 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES SPECIAL MEETING 

August 9, 2022 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jenny Bernosky, Secretary  

North County Joint Union School District 

Board of Trustees 

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30PM by Board President, Ted Zanella. 

Members Present: Renee Faught, Trustee, Norma Nichols, Trustee, Cindy King, Board Clerk. Ted 
Zanella, Board President 
Absent: Frank O’Connell 

1. Pledge of Allegiance The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Board President, Ted Zanella. 

2. Approval of Agenda Motion to approve by Cindy King, 2nd  by Norma Nichols 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted Zanella, Aye 
Absent: Frank O’Connell 

3. Recognition of Visitors NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS NONE 

CONSENT Motion to approve by Cindy King, 2nd  by Renee Faught 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted Zanella, Aye 
Absent: Frank O’Connell 

DISCUSSION / ACTION 1) Approve School Resource Office Contract between the San Benito County Sheriff’s 
Department and the North County Joint Union School District, as presented.
Motion to approve by Renee Faught, 2nd  by Norma Nichols
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted Zanella, Aye
Absent: Frank O’Connell
2) Approve the Amendment to the 1:1 Special Education Aide Job Description, as
presented.
Motion to approve by Cindy King, 2nd  by Renee Faught
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted Zanella, Aye
Absent: Frank O’Connell

TRUSTEE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS NONE 

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING August 18, 2022 

ADJOURNMENT At 5:54 pm motion to adjourn by Renee Faught, 2nd by Cindy King 
VOTE: Renee Faught, Aye, Norma Nichols, Aye, Cindy King, Aye, Ted Zanella, Aye 
Absent: Frank O'Connell

32 32



0
0
7
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
J
O
I
N
T
 
U
N
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
1
9
3
6
4
 
 
W
A
R
B
R
D
S
C
 
L
.
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
8
/
0
2
/
2
2
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
1



J
u
l
y
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
2





W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
I
s
s
u
e



N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
y
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
n
d
 
R
e
s
c
 
Y
 
O
b
j
t
 
S
O
 
G
o
a
l
 
F
u
n
c
 
C
s
t
C
t
r
 
S
t
e
 
M
n
g
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e



-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
M
E
R
I
C
A
N
 
F
I
D
E
L
I
T
Y
 
A
S
S
U
A
N
C
E
 
C
O



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
9
.
9
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
9
.
9
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
M
E
R
I
C
A
N
 
F
I
D
E
L
I
T
Y
 
A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 
C
O



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
N
D
E
R
S
O
N
,
 
C
O
L
B
Y



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
3
0
6
1
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
3
3
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
2
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
2
4




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
R
M
E
N
T
A
,
 
G
A
B
R
I
E
L
L
A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
A
S
S
R
O
O
M
/
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
3
0
6
1
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
3
3
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
0
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
0
2




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
T
&
T



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
h
o
n
e
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
9
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
5
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
5
2




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
T
&
T



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
1
.
2
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
1
.
2
3




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
7
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
T
&
T



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
7
.
0
8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
7
.
0
8




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
V
I
D
 
C
E
N
T
E
R



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
I
D
 
T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
2
2
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
2
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
A
V
I
D
 
C
E
N
T
E
R



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
n
u
a
l
 
A
V
I
D
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
2
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
2
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
2
2
5
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
B
A
K
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
&
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
m
l
 
E
q
u
i
p
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
s
/
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
4
3
8
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
1
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
.
5
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
.
5
4




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
B
A
N
K
 
O
F
 
N
E
W
 
Y
O
R
K
 
M
E
L
L
O
N
,
 
T
H
E



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
A
S
U
R
E
 
M
-
B
o
n
d
 
A
g
e
n
t
 
F
e
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
1
8
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
9
1
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
B
R
A
I
N
P
O
P
 
L
L
C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
U
B
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
1
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
1
5
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
C
A
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
B
O
A
R
D
S
 
A
S
S
C
-
C
S
B
 
6
7
4
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
/
G
a
m
u
t
 
O
n
l
i
n
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
3
0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
8
0
.
0
0



2

33 33



0
0
7
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
J
O
I
N
T
 
U
N
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
1
9
3
6
4
 
 
W
A
R
B
R
D
S
C
 
L
.
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
8
/
0
2
/
2
2
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
2



J
u
l
y
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
2





W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
I
s
s
u
e



N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
y
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
n
d
 
R
e
s
c
 
Y
 
O
b
j
t
 
S
O
 
G
o
a
l
 
F
u
n
c
 
C
s
t
C
t
r
 
S
t
e
 
M
n
g
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e



-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
/
G
a
m
u
t
 
O
n
l
i
n
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
3
0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
1
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
/
G
a
m
u
t
 
O
n
l
i
n
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
3
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
4
6
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
7
4
1
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
C
A
S
B
O



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
3
0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
3
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
5
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
5
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
C
D
W
 
G
O
V
E
R
N
M
E
N
T
 
I
N
C
.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
N
C
A
P
I
T
A
L
I
Z
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
4
0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
2
4
2
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
8
.
1
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
N
C
A
P
I
T
A
L
I
Z
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
4
0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
2
4
2
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
1
.
6
1
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
2
4
2
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
0
5
.
6
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
2
4
2
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
4
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
N
C
A
P
I
T
A
L
I
Z
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
3
0
0
-
0
-
4
4
0
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
8
.
1
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
N
C
A
P
I
T
A
L
I
Z
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
3
0
0
-
0
-
4
4
0
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
1
.
6
1
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
3
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
4
1
3
.
2
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
3
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
7
2
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
1
0
7
.
9
2




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
C
O
O
L
E
 
S
C
H
O
O
L



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
A
S
S
R
O
O
M
/
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
2
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
1
.
5
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
2
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
1
5
.
5
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
-
U
S
E
 
T
A
X
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
2
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
1
.
5
3
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
1
5
.
5
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
C
u
r
r
i
c
u
l
u
m
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
 
L
L
C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
i
R
e
a
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
1
0
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
8
5
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
i
R
e
a
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
5
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
6
0
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
D
A
S
S
E
L
'
S
 
P
E
T
R
O
L
E
U
M



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
8
.
0
7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
8
.
0
7




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 
O
F
 
J
U
S
T
I
C
E



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
4
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
E
S
G
i
 
L
L
C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
-
m
t
h
 
K
i
n
d
e
r
 
A
s
s
e
s
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
2
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
2
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
E
i
d
e
 
B
a
i
l
l
y
 
L
L
P



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
U
D
I
T
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
2
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
9
7
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
9
7
5
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
F
A
G
E
N
 
F
R
I
E
D
M
A
N
 
&
 
F
U
L
F
R
O
S
T
 
L
L
P



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
5
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
5
7
7
0
-
1
1
9
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
.
5
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
.
5
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
F
O
L
L
E
T
T
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
i
b
r
a
r
y
 
H
o
s
t
e
d
 
S
v
c
 
R
e
n
e
w
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
2
4
2
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
8
8
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
8
8
.
0
0



3

34 34



0
0
7
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
J
O
I
N
T
 
U
N
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
1
9
3
6
4
 
 
W
A
R
B
R
D
S
C
 
L
.
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
8
/
0
2
/
2
2
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
3



J
u
l
y
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
2





W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
I
s
s
u
e



N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
y
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
n
d
 
R
e
s
c
 
Y
 
O
b
j
t
 
S
O
 
G
o
a
l
 
F
u
n
c
 
C
s
t
C
t
r
 
S
t
e
 
M
n
g
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e



-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
F
R
O
N
T
L
I
N
E
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
G
R
P
 
L
L
C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
&
 
A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
4
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
2
3
.
0
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
2
3
.
0
2




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
G
A
V
I
L
A
N
 
P
E
S
T
 
C
O
N
T
R
O
L



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
e
s
t
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
e
s
t
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
e
s
t
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
e
s
t
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
5
5
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
G
O
L
D
 
S
T
A
R
 
F
O
O
D
S



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
-
5
3
1
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
8
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
8
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
G
O
L
D
 
S
T
A
R
 
F
O
O
D
S



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
S
S
E
S
S
M
E
N
T
 
A
N
D
 
F
E
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
-
5
3
1
0
-
0
-
5
8
1
8
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
2
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
2
5




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
G
O
L
D
E
N
 
B
E
A
R
 
F
I
R
E



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
r
e
 
E
x
t
i
g
u
s
h
e
r
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
2
.
5
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
r
e
 
E
x
t
i
g
u
s
h
e
r
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
-
5
3
1
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
2
.
5
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
5
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
H
A
R
R
Y
 
L
.
 
M
U
R
P
H
Y
 
I
N
C
.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
0
-
0
2
0
5
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
1
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
8
5
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
,
8
5
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
H
O
L
L
I
S
T
E
R
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
i
n
t
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
4
3
8
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
1
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
.
7
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
i
n
t
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
4
3
8
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
1
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
.
4
9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
1
.
2
5




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
H
O
L
L
I
S
T
E
R
 
P
A
I
N
T
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
2
0
1
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
i
n
t
i
n
g
 
R
m
s
/
E
a
s
t
 
S
i
d
e
 
G
y
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
6
7
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
1
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
7
7
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
7
7
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
I
X
L
 
L
e
a
r
n
i
n
g
 
I
n
c
.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
t
h
-
8
t
h
 
M
a
t
h
 
C
i
r
r
i
c
u
l
u
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
1
0
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
5
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
I
m
a
g
e
 
S
o
u
r
c
e



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
.
9
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
7
.
7
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
2
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
5
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
.
1
6




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
K
R
A
K
A
R
,
 
J
A
M
I
E



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
1
5
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
0
0



4

35 35



0
0
7
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
J
O
I
N
T
 
U
N
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
1
9
3
6
4
 
 
W
A
R
B
R
D
S
C
 
L
.
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
8
/
0
2
/
2
2
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
4



J
u
l
y
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
2





W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
I
s
s
u
e



N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
y
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
n
d
 
R
e
s
c
 
Y
 
O
b
j
t
 
S
O
 
G
o
a
l
 
F
u
n
c
 
C
s
t
C
t
r
 
S
t
e
 
M
n
g
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e



-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
K
a
m
i



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
a
m
i
 
S
u
b
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
6
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
L
i
t
e
r
a
c
y
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
L
L
C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
k
-
3
r
d
 
I
n
t
e
r
v
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
1
0
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
7
.
0
9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
k
-
3
r
d
 
I
n
t
e
r
v
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
1
0
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
4
9
.
6
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
k
-
3
r
d
 
I
n
t
e
r
v
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
2
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
7
.
0
9
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
4
9
.
6
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
M
A
R
K
E
R
B
O
A
R
D
 
P
E
O
P
L
E
,
 
T
H
E



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
D
r
y
 
E
r
a
s
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
6
.
9
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
D
r
y
 
E
r
a
s
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
2
0
.
2
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
D
r
y
 
E
r
a
s
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
2
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
6
.
9
2
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
7
2
0
.
2
5




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
M
E
T
R
O
P
O
L
I
T
A
N
 
L
I
F
E
 
I
N
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 
C
O



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
.
5
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
.
5
5




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
P
A
C
I
F
I
C
 
G
A
S
 
&
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
C
O



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
7
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
7
6




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
P
A
C
I
F
I
C
 
G
A
S
 
&
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
C
O



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
A
S
 
A
N
D
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
5
2
2
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
3
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
3
6




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
P
A
L
A
C
E
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
t
h
 
N
o
t
e
b
o
o
k
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
.
4
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
4
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
.
0
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
1
9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
5
.
6
8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
5
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
1
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
5
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
.
7
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
5
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
6
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
.
6
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
5
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
3
9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
5
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
4
.
6
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
.
0
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
2
.
3
9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
6
5



5

36 36



0
0
7
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
J
O
I
N
T
 
U
N
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
1
9
3
6
4
 
 
W
A
R
B
R
D
S
C
 
L
.
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
8
/
0
2
/
2
2
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
5



J
u
l
y
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
2





W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
I
s
s
u
e



N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
y
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
n
d
 
R
e
s
c
 
Y
 
O
b
j
t
 
S
O
 
G
o
a
l
 
F
u
n
c
 
C
s
t
C
t
r
 
S
t
e
 
M
n
g
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e



-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
6
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
.
4
8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
6
9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
5
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
.
1
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
7
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
2
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
9
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
.
6
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
1
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
.
0
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
.
3
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
1
.
7
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
5
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
7
.
4
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
.
4
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
5
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
3
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
5
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
7
.
1
7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
5
.
5
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
4
.
4
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
E
A
C
H
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
.
9
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
0
5
.
8
6




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
P
A
L
A
C
E
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
2
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
7
9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
2
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
8
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
2
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
4
6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
4
8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
4
.
2
7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
3
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
0
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
3
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
.
1
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
3
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
3
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
4
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
3
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
4
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
3
0
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
4
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
.
8
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
I
D
 
B
i
n
d
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
2
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
7
2
0
.
0
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
I
D
 
B
i
n
d
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
2
0
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
4
.
8
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
p
y
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
8
2
.
7
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
6
0
8
.
7
5




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
R
A
N
C
H
O
 
S
A
N
 
J
O
A
Q
U
I
N
 
M
U
T
U
A
L



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
T
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
5
5
5
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
R
C
I
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
I
N
C
.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
8
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
8
0
.
0
0



6

37 37



0
0
7
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
J
O
I
N
T
 
U
N
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
1
9
3
6
4
 
 
W
A
R
B
R
D
S
C
 
L
.
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
8
/
0
2
/
2
2
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
6



J
u
l
y
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
2





W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
I
s
s
u
e



N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
y
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
n
d
 
R
e
s
c
 
Y
 
O
b
j
t
 
S
O
 
G
o
a
l
 
F
u
n
c
 
C
s
t
C
t
r
 
S
t
e
 
M
n
g
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e



-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
R
J
R
 
E
N
V
I
R
O
N
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
I
N
C
.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
C
Y
C
L
I
N
G
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
5
1
5
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
3
.
1
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
3
.
1
2




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
R
O
C
H
E
S
T
E
R
 
1
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
m
e
w
k
/
C
o
m
m
 
F
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
2
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
.
9
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
m
e
w
k
/
C
o
m
m
 
F
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
2
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
5
.
9
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
m
e
w
k
/
C
o
m
m
 
F
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
2
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
.
9
4
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
m
e
w
k
/
C
o
m
m
 
F
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
2
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
m
e
w
k
/
C
o
m
m
 
F
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
0
.
3
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
m
e
w
k
/
C
o
m
m
 
F
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
2
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
2
3
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
2
6
.
2
5




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
R
e
a
d
i
n
g
 
V
e
n
t
u
r
e
 
O
n
e
 
L
L
C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
d
 
W
o
r
d
 
B
o
o
k
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
1
.
1
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
1
.
1
3




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
R
e
a
l
l
y
 
G
r
e
a
t
 
R
e
a
d
i
n
g
 
C
o
m
p
 
L
L
C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
G
R
 
S
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
K
i
t
s
 
K
&
1
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
2
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
2
5
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
S
A
N
 
B
E
N
I
T
O
 
H
I
G
H
 
S
C
H
O
O
L



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
3
0
6
1
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
3
3
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
8
.
1
1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
8
.
1
1




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
O
F
 
C
A
L
I
F
O
R
N
I
A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
N
S
U
L
T
I
N
G
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
8
3
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
3
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
6
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
6
0
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
S
E
L
F
-
I
N
S
U
R
E
D
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
S
 
O
F
 
C
A
L
I
F
.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
-
S
e
p
 
2
2
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
2
1
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
6
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
-
S
e
p
 
2
2
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
2
5
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
7
0
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
-
S
e
p
 
2
2
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
9
4
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
9
6
.
0
7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
-
S
e
p
 
2
2
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
9
4
1
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
1
6
.
3
8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
3
1
0
0
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
-
S
e
p
 
2
2
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
B
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
9
4
2
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
4
0
0
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
7
7
2
.
4
5




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
S
i
e
r
r
a
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
C
o



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
v
a
b
l
e
 
S
c
r
e
e
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
4
0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
1
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
6
9
.
5
8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
6
9
.
5
8




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
T
C
i



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
c
i
a
l
 
S
t
u
d
i
e
s
 
L
i
c
e
n
s
e
s
 
-
 
8
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
3
0
0
-
0
-
4
2
0
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
5
4
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
5
4
.
0
0




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
T
E
X
A
S
 
L
I
F
E
 
I
N
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
1
.
7
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
1
.
7
2




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
8
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
U
.
S
.
 
B
A
N
K



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
A
S
S
R
O
O
M
/
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
6
.
3
1



7

38 38



0
0
7
 
N
O
R
T
H
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
J
O
I
N
T
 
U
N
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
1
9
3
6
4
 
 
W
A
R
B
R
D
S
C
 
L
.
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
8
/
0
2
/
2
2
 
P
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
7



J
u
l
y
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
L
i
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
2





W
a
r
r
a
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
I
s
s
u
e



N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
a
y
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
P
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
n
d
 
R
e
s
c
 
Y
 
O
b
j
t
 
S
O
 
G
o
a
l
 
F
u
n
c
 
C
s
t
C
t
r
 
S
t
e
 
M
n
g
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e



-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
A
S
S
R
O
O
M
/
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
7
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
3
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
2
2
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
8
.
8
7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
2
2
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
7
8
.
8
7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
5
2
2
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
2
5
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
0
.
9
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
7
4
5
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
1
0
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
.
1
2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
1
1
0
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
1
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
8
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
A
S
S
R
O
O
M
/
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
3
0
6
1
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
3
3
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
0
8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
3
0
6
1
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
0
0
-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
3
0
6
1
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
7
1
1
0
-
1
0
0
0
-
3
3
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
8
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
S
S
E
S
S
M
E
N
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
5
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
5
7
7
0
-
3
1
2
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
1
.
4
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
E
D
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
5
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
5
7
7
0
-
3
1
2
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
1
4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
E
D
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
5
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
5
7
7
0
-
3
9
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
1
9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
2
3
0
0
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
E
D
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
6
5
0
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
5
7
7
0
-
3
9
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
.
1
5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
V
3
0
0
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
A
S
S
R
O
O
M
/
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
4
3
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
.
5
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
0
-
8
1
5
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
8
2
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
5
3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
1
2
0
.
0
8




0
7
 
 
 
0
0
3
9
9
6
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
W
A
T
S
O
N
V
I
L
L
E
 
C
O
A
S
T
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
E
 
I
N
C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
L
2
0
0
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
P
A
Y
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
-
5
3
1
0
-
0
-
9
5
1
0
-
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
-
3
7
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
-
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
u
b
 
t
o
t
a
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
.
0
0




 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
s
 
I
s
s
u
e
d
:
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
1
,
0
0
7
.
5
7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
s
 
C
a
n
c
e
l
e
d
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
W
a
r
r
a
n
t
s
 
(
I
s
s
u
e
d
 
-
 
C
a
n
c
e
l
e
d
)
:
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
1
,
0
0
7
.
5
7






8

39 39



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 

DATE: August 18, 2022 
PRESENTED BY: Erin Livingston, Human Resources 

TOPIC: Personnel Exhibit 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Approval Recommended 

 

 

CERTIFICATED STIPEND POSITION FOR THE 22/23 SCHOOL YEAR 

NAME ACTION POSITION/FTE EFFECTIVE 
Aaron Griffin Hire BTSA Support Provider 22/23 SY 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 
NAME ACTION POSITION/FTE EFFECTIVE 
Amy Smith Hire Intervention Support Specialist/.625 8/8/2022 
Jeanta Wolfaardt Hire Intervention Support Specialist/.625 8/8/2022 
Chelcie Bielejec Hire Noon Duty Supervisor/.312 8/8/2022 

 

40 40



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Fiscal Services 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 

 
DATE:  August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Sheila Maes, Manager, Fiscal Services 
 
TOPIC: Ratify District Services and Operating Agreements and/or Contracts 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Consent Approval 
 
 

  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Each year the District enters into many contracts for services. Service and consultant 
contracts are routinely brought to the Board with a recommendation for ratification. Copies of contracts are available for review 
at the meeting or prior to the meeting upon request.  Contracts under consideration are for the 2022/2023 school year. 
 
CURRENT CONSIDERATIONS:   
 
Hollister School District (HSD): Memorandum of Understanding effective August 17, 2022 through July 7, 2023 to provide 
Extraordinary Expense beyond the base program for District of Residence (North County Joint Union School District) student 
being served by the Provider District (HSD). The Provider District shall provide a One-to-One Additional Adult Assistance for 
Special Education Students as identified and outlined in his/her IEP six hours a day. The District of Residence to provide 
reimbursement for services rendered to cover costs of salary, benefits, and related costs of the One-to-One Aide. Estimated 
total $35,540 per student subject to change based upon any negotiations for the 2022-23 school year. 
 
Hollister School District (HSD):  Memorandum of Understanding effective August 17, 2022 through July 7, 2023 to provide 
Extraordinary Expense beyond the base program for District of Residence (North County Joint Union School District) student 
being served by the Provider District (HSD). The Provider District shall provide a One-to-One Additional Adult Assistance for 
Special Education Student as identified and outlined in his/her IEP six hours a day. The District of Residence to provide 
reimbursement for services rendered to cover costs of salary, benefits, and related costs of the One-to-One Aide.  
Estimated total $23,890 subject to change based upon any negotiations for the 2022-23 school year. 
 
San Benito County Office of Education (SBCOE): Memorandum of Understanding between SBCOE and NCJUSD to 
provide an extraordinary expense which is beyond the base program for District of Residence students who are being served 
by the Provider District.  One to One Additional Adult Assistance – Instructional Aide .3125 FTE, estimated $13,949. August 
11, 2022 through July 10,2023. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: All contracts to be charged to the appropriate allocated fund and resource as per adopted 
budget for the 2022/2023. 
 
 

41 41



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Fiscal Services 

BOARD REPORT 
 
 
 
 
  

DATE:  August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Sheila Maes, Manager, Fiscal Services 
 
TOPIC:  Investment of Funds Report – Quarter Ending June 30, 2022 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Approval Recommended  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Each quarter the Board is required to review and approve the Investment 
of Funds Report from the San Benito County Treasurer’s Office.  Enclosed is the quarterly report from the 
County Treasurer for quarter ending June 30, 2022.  This report reflects the overall pool of invested funds of 
which schools are a part, and the rate of return that the portfolio earned during the period. This rate of return is 
reflected in the amount of interest the district receives each year.    
 
 
CONCLUSION: Approval of the Investment of Funds Report for quarter ending June 30, 2022. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: None 
 

42 42



43 43



44 44



45 45



46 46



47 47



48 48



49 49



50 50



51 51



52 52



53 53



54 54



55 55



56 56



57 57



58 58



  

DISCUSSION / 

ACTION 

59 59



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 

 
DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
 
TOPIC: 2022/2023 District Organizational Chart 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Approval Recommended  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Each year, in order to provide clarity of function and responsibility, an 
organizational chart is reviewed, revised (if needed) and approved by the Board of Trustees.  

 
The organizational chart outlines administrative oversight and responsibility and reflects approved 
job descriptions. 
 
CONCLUSION: Approval Recommended 
 

60 60



 
 

Superintendent / Principal

D
irector of Student 

Services, C
urriculum

 &
 

Instruction

C
ertificated Staff

School O
ffice 

Personnel

Intervention 
Support Specialists

N
oon D

uty 
Supervisors

D
irector of SPED

 / 
A

dm
inistrative 

D
istrict Psychologist

SPED
  

Teachers

Language 
Speech 

Specialist

SPED
 A

ides

O
ccupational 
Therapist

School 
Psychologist

School 
Psychologist

IN
TER

N

M
anager, 
Fiscal 

Services

A
ccounts /Payroll Specialist

C
ertificated 

Staff
Pre K

 
Teacher

Technology / 
Library 

Specialist

M
aintenance/

C
ustodial Staff

Transportation
Food Service 

M
anager

Food Service 
W

orkers I &
 II

Instructional 
A

ides
V

olunteers

A
dm

inistrative 
A

ssistant/H
R

 A
nalyst

61 61



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 

 
DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent 
 
TOPIC: Certification of the 2022/2023 Certificated Evaluators 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Approval Recommended  
 
 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The Superintendent shall ensure that administrators who evaluate 
teachers meet the qualifications for evaluators of certificated personnel as stated in Board Policy 4210 and 
Administrative Regulation 4210.  
 
The Superintendent has determined that the following administrators have demonstrated competence in 
instructional methodologies and possess the skills necessary to fulfill the role of an evaluator.  
All evaluators are certificated administrators with valid teaching credentials. All certificated evaluators possess a 
valid administrative credential. 
 
In accordance with A.R. 4210, each assigned evaluator has demonstrated the competency necessary to fulfill 
his/her responsibilities. This determination of competency may include, but not be limited to the following: have 
demonstrated successful classroom teaching experience; have competence in a variety of instructional 
methodologies; have competence in a variety of supervision techniques; have a working knowledge of mastery 
teaching components; be cognizant of the negotiated contract wording regarding the evaluation process; and be 
knowledgeable of the characteristics of effective schools and effective teaching as derived from literature and 
research. 
 
Individual administrators attend relevant workshops outside the District and keep themselves up-to-date in the 
areas of their specific interests and needs through membership in professional organizations and their own 
readings and other such administrative training programs. 
 
CONCLUSION: To certify the following administrators as certificated evaluators for the 2022/2023 school year.  
 

Jennifer Bernosky 
Gabriella Armenta 

Kristi Vieyra 
 

62 62



NORTH COUNTY JOINT UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD REPORT 

 
 

 
DATE: August 18, 2022 
 
REPORT BY: Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
 
TOPIC: Appointment of 2022/2023 Negotiating Team 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Approval Recommended 
 
 

  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Each year the Board of Trustees appoints a District negotiator or negotiating 
team to conduct negotiations on behalf of the District. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: It is requested that the Board approve the following Administration and Staff as the District’s 
negotiators: 
 
Jennifer Bernosky, Superintendent/Principal 
Gabriella Armenta, Director of Student Service, Curriculum & Instruction 
Sheila Maes, Manager, Fiscal Services 
 
Approval is also requested for legal representative, Dannis, Woliver Kelley, as needed. 
 

63 63




	2167 - Building Layouts.pdf
	2167 - Base Site Plan Layout1 (1)
	2167 - Base Site Plan Layout 2 (1)
	2167 - Base Site Plan Layout 3 (1)
	2167 - Base Site Plan Layout 4 (1)

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	JULY EXPENSES.pdf
	7-29-22

	Blank Page

	Name: Erin Livingston
	Job Title: Administrative Assistant/HR Analyst
	Phone Number: 831-637-5574 x-201
	E-mail Address: elivingston@sbcoe.org
	School District: [North County]
	Year: 2022
	Quarter: [Quarter 4 (Apr.–Jun.)]
	Total Number of Textbook Complaints: 0
	Number of Textbook Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Textbook Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Total Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints: 0
	Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Total Number of VacancyMisassignment Complaints: 0
	Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Resolution of Complaints: 
	Includes All UCP Complaints: On


